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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Lintited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Saveera Institute of Medical
Sciences Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the Ind AS financtal statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2020, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specifted under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial staiements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Ind AS financial
statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
mcludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no.realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resufting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
inctuding the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othey
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

].

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the maiters spectfied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended:;

(¢) On the basis of the wrilten representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

{2} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act; and .
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Eh WE respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2,25 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses; and

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S_R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

. t&\/
per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328 AAAABZ9591
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 26 June 2020
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Annexure 1, referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date
Re: Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (the ‘Company”)

(i)

(i)

(iti)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viip)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
There was no inventory lying with third parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same,

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed dues in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.
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(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xtv)

(xv)

{xvi)

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt
instruments. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us,
the term loans taken by the company and applied during the period were for the purpose
for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the [inancial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud
on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA1 Firm Registration Number: 101049W!E300004

Nam o ﬁu 43&/(«1

per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328AAAABZ9591
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 26 June 2020
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Annexure 2 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scction 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repotting of Saveera Institute of Medical
Sciences Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the
tinancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™} and the Standards on Auditing as specified vnder section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
{inancial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of internal financial controls ever financial reporting with reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)} pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

%MJ{@M

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Pasrtner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 20102328AAAABZ9591
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 26 June 2020




Saveern Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

MNote As As M
31 March 2020 3t March 2019
Assels
Non ewrreni asseés
Property, plant and aquipment 20 {a) 33120 33050
Intangible assels 2.0 (W 252 .19
Financial assets
(i} Loans 2.21(a) 344 356
{ii) Oiher finaneial asset 23 (162 -
Mon current tax assel 3789 a2z
Oher assets 24 15.20 17.22
356.96 858,69
Current assets
Inventones 25 12.83 16,34
Finaneial assets
{i} Loans 22y 047 -
{ii) Tvade receivables 16 9T 34 A0 .04
{iti) Cash and cash equivalenls 23 111 4.52
(v Other financial asset 23 (b 782 6.20
Oiher assets 2.8 517 200
124.74 99,06
Total Asseis _lhﬂl 1.70 Y8775
Equity and lishilities
Lquity
Faquity share eapital 29(a) 310,00 790,10
Other equity 2.%Mb)y 4531 (t5.42}
Total cquity 264,67 274.68
Non-¢urrent liabilities
Financial lialilities
{i} Borrawings 210 53344 40514
(i} Cxliers financial liabilities 2014 ia} 421 3.26
Long term provisions 21 115 467
Deforved tax Labilily (net) 231 - 27.80
558.86 526.87
Curreat linhilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Bewrowings 212 L35 84,32
{ii} Trade payables
{2) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 213 - -
{b) Toal outstanding dues of credilors olher than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 213 107.29 60,53
(iniy Others financial Habililies 2l G140 Al 64
Provisions 2.15 iz 0,04
Other eurrent Tiabilities 216 405 4.2
Total current Liabilities 158.17 186,20
Total equity amd liabilitics 1,011.70 087,78
Significani accounting policies 1.3

The accompanying neles referred above form an integral part of the Mnancial stalements,
As per our report altached of even date

for S.R. Basliboi & Associates LLP
Chariered Accounlanls

Nayned- Ko

per Mavaeet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership Moz 102323

Place: Myderabad
Date: 26 June 20240

CDIN: 01681273

fior cned o hefadi of the Boured of Divectin of

Saveers lustitute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: USS 1 00AP201EPTCI 09004

et A

S.¥. Kishore Reddy
Managing Diveclor
ISIM: 03492323

g . clondms]

Chandra Kanar Butl&,\
Company Secretary
Membership Mo:55162

Place: Hyderalind
(ke 26 June 2020



Saveera Institute of Medieal Sciences Private Limited
Statement of prolis and loss fox the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of ndian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

Not For the year ended 31 For the period eaded
ote March 2020 31 March 2019
Tncome
Revenue fron cantracis with cuslomers 217 582.88 20705
Orther income 2.18 2,22 2.21
Total inceme 55510 129.36
Expenses
Medical consumables and pliarmacy items consumed 249 i57.49 54 .32
Employee benefits expense 2.20 12231 4436
Depreciation and amottization expense 2 45 69 2042
Fipance cosl 221 6323 29.56
Other expenses 2.22 255.57 126.93
Total expense 644.09 275,59
Loss before tax (58.99) (46.23)
Tax expense
- Current tax 23 - -
« Defarred tax eredit 2.3 (27.95) [12.86)
Total tax expense (27.95) {12.86)
Lass For the year (A) (31.04) (3337
Other comprehensive income
Ltems that will not be reclassificd subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement gain on defined bonelit plans 0.52 -
- Income tax effect {0.15) -
Other comprelensive income/ (loss), net of tax (B} .38 -
Total comprehensive toss for the year (A+B) (30.60) 33.37
Earning per shave (face value of share 15,10 each)
- Basic 2.26 (3,104.32} (5,364.6M
- Diluted 2.26 {3,104.32) {5,364,67)
Signilicant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes referred io above form an integral pan of the financial staténents
As per our report attached of even date
for 5.8, Batliboi & Assecintes LLEP o aid o behedf of the Board of Direciors of
Chariered Accountants Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 101049 W/E34 o CIN: US5100AP2018PTCI 09004

Named o 1

per Mavneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership Mo 102328

LA
.V, Kishore Reddy

Managing Iineclor
[N 03442323

Chandra Kumar Bodda™
Company Secretary
Membership Mo:35162

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date; 20 June 2020 Dale: 26 June 2020



Saveera Institute of Medical Selences Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Murch 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees excepl share data or unless otherwise stated

Particulars Equity share | Instraments Oiher equity Total of other cquity
capital cntively equity | Reserve and surplus Capital
in ature Retained carnings cantritruti
Balance as at 01 April 2009 0.10 200,04 {3337 L1795 (1542}
Loss for the year - - (31.04) - (31,04
Guaranlge comnission - - - 015 0.75
Issue of shares - 15.90 - - -
Re-measuvement of defined benefit plans net of tax - - 0.38 - 0.4
Balance as ai 31 March 2020 .10 309.90 (6404} 18.71 {45.33)
Particulars Lqquity share | Instr Other cquity Tutal of siher equity
capital entively equity | Reserve and suyplus Capitab
in natore Retained £arnings contribtion
Balance as at 16 Augusl 2013 - - - - -
Loss for the period - - (33.37) - (33N
Guataires comnission - - - AL £7.95
Issite of equity shares .l - - - .
Jssne of 0.001% cumulative optionally convertible - 260,00 - - -
redesmable preference shares
Balance as at 31 March 2019 10 INLG0 (3337} 17.95 (15.42%)

The accompanying noles refermed 1o above form an integeat part of the financial siatements

As per our report allached of even date

for 5.0¢, Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration number: 101 049W,

NGMu)’ Res 1

per Mavneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership No: 102328

Piace: Hyderabad
Drate: 26 June 2020

fior et an heltodf of the Boord of Brectors of

Saveera Institute af Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIR: UBS 100AP2O 1 EPTC 109004

C631272

Q- C'_hov’t]vd}
Chanilra Kemar Beddu .

Company Secretary
Memberslip No:55162

Place:; Hyderabad
Prate: 26 June 2020

< W"\’LAV’

S.¥. Kishere Reddy
Managing Divecior
I2IM: 03492323



Saveern Institete of Medical Seiences Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

All amounls are in million of ndian Rupees except share data or unless olberwise stated

For the year ended 31
March 2020

For the year eanded 31
Mavch 2HS

1. Operating activitics:

Loss before tax )

Adjustments to reconcile loss before fax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Expecied credit loss for (rade receivables

Sub lease income

Imterest income on Fixed deposit

Finance costs

Working capital adjusiments:
Increase in trade receivables

Decrease/{Increase) in inventories
{Increaseydecrease in (inancial asscls
Ticrease in other assels

Decreasef Increase) in comirac! Assets
Increaseficdecrease) in financial liabililes
Increase in provisions

Incrzase in contragt liabilities

Decrease in other liabilities

Income taxes-paid {net)
Net cash flows fromf(used in) operating activities (A)

IL. Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Suls lcase income received

Interest received on Fixed deposit

Net cash fllows used in investing activities {13)

1. Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares

Payment of purchiase consideration for slump sale (refer note 2.33)
Praceeds from long-tenn barrowings

Repaymenl of long-term borrowings

Procecds from short-term borrowings (net)

Interest paid

Net ensh flows (used in) generaled from financing activities {C)

Net inerense in cash and cash cquivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of Uhe year
Cash and ensh equivalents af the end of the year

Mate:

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances willy banks

- Om current accounts

Total

The accompanying notes vefered to above form an integral part ol the financial slalements

As per our report altached of even date

[For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration namber: 101045 W/R2508

NmMcJ" &-. !

per Mavnect Rai Kabra
Pariner
Tembership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 June 2020

(58.99) (46.23)
45,69 20.42
222 4.91
144 1.16
0.05 .
63.23 30,00
£3.63 10.26
£29.62) (13.33)
351 (10.27
5213 1.19
(2.50) {0.75)
237 (3.58)
40.76 (14.66)
404 0.75
0.37 0
(0.74) 6.1y
6661 (35.78)
(6.67) (9.79)
59,94 {d%.57)
(38.23) (70.10}
(1.44) (1.16)
(0,05} -
(39.71} (71.26)
19.90 29010
. £197.27)
107.00 500,00
(57.00) (53214}
(3597) 84.32
(57.87) £23.66)
(23,04} 121.35
(3.71) 4.52
4.52 -
0.81 4.52
0.59 0.74
0.22 378
0.81 4.52

L Chanva
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

1.1 Company Overview

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘the Company’) is private company
domiciled in India and is incorporated on 16 August 2018 under provisions of the the Companies
Act, 2013, The registered office of the company is located at D No 1-1348, Srinagar Colony
Extension, Opposite to Sakshi Office, Anantapur, Andhra Pradesh, India - 515004,

The Company is primarily engaged in business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 June
2020.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements
a) Statement of Compliances:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards

(“Ind AS”) as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016
notified under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the

Act.
b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except
share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Change in accounting policies
New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in the current year, but do not
have an impact on the Financial Statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted
any standards or amendments that have been issued but not yet effective.
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-
Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease). The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance
sheet.

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" applied to all lease contracts
existing on 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and elected to measure the Right-
of-Use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability as at the date of initial application, on the date
of initial application. The effect of this adoption does not have an impact on the assets, liabilities,
loss for the year and earning per share.

The Company applied the Standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company
also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date,
have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and
lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS
17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

e) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees, except share data or unless otherwise stated

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether

there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions

used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The

reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,

nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the-
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

J. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed
in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
K. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income (OCI).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes
to the defined benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs,
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of the past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible
leave during the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards
compensated absences at the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding
leave absence at the end of the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

L. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
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Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Financial assets at amortised cost
= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue
receivables’ in these financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
ther, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
R its initial recognition.
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
= Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

M. Preference shares

0.001% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (“COCRPS”) are
accounted as equity component based on the terms of the contract. The proceeds are included in
equity since shares met Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are
deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

0. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividend) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividend) for the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share.

P. Segment reporting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Management
evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at
market prices. Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are
not allocated to any business segment.

Segment Policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted
for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable
costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

Q. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting petiod, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements.
herwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
2.2 Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
{a) Non-current
Security deposits 344 3.56
3.44 3.56
(b) Current
Security deposits 0.47 .
0.47 -
2.3 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of reporting date* 0.57 "
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.05 -
Total 0,62 -
* The above deposils are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.
(b} Current
Caontract assets 1.21 3.58
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.04 -
Other receivables 6,57 268
Total 7.82 6,26
2.4 Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 0.35 0.94
Prepaid guarantee commission 14.85 16.28
Total 15.20 17.22
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As at
31 March 2020

Asat 31
March 2019

2.7 Cash and bank balances

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.59 0.74
Balances with banks
- i eurrent accounts 0.22 3.78
0.81 4.52
b)  Other bank balances*-Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months 0.30 .
0.30 -
Total 111 4.52

* The above deposils are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing within 12 months of the reporting date.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2019 Cash flows Other 31 March 2020
Current borrowings 84.32 (35.97) (37.00) 11.35
Non- current borrowings 497.43 50.01 37.00 584.44
Total liabilities from financing activities 581.75 14.04 - 595.79
Particulars 1 April 2018 Cash flows Other 31 March 2019
Current borrowings - 84.32 - 84.32
Non- current borrowings - (32.13) 529.56 497.43
Total liabilities from financing activities - 52.19 529.56 581,75
Others includes re-classification of borrowings and borrowings acquired through business combination,
2.8 Other current assets

{Unsecured, considered good)

As at Asat 31

31 March 2020

March 2019

Staff advances 0.46 0.30
Advance to suppliers 238 0.20
Prepaid expenses 0.71 1.50
Prepaid guaraniee commission 1.61 .
Total 5.17 2.00
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As o
31 Mareh 2020

Asat
31 Meareh 2014

2.9 (a)  Equity share capital

Authorised
Cond TOLOEHE 30 Mareh 20049 100 coquity shares of Rs. 10 cach (IR0 (IR0}
by 0Lk 0 (31 March 2005 309900000} preforence shares o Bs. 1 cach Ik EIEALT
SLIHE LK
Issued, subseribed wned paid-up
Eaquity shares
000000 (31 March 2009 WLNEY couity, shares of Rs. 10 cach. fully paid-up (IR L] [N ]]
Tnstrumwnts entively equity in nature
30,990,000 (31 March 2009 29,000, 0110, 0 00 % comulative optionally conyertible ble preference shares of 300 0 200110
R 10 cach, fully paid-up
31000 290.10

i) Reconcilintion of number of shaves outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the peciod:

(i) Equity shares

Particulars

Ax at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Number of shires Amiimt Number of shares Amaunt
Shares ot the begmmning of the vear [{IAEII i = -
Sharcs sssoed durmg the penod - - 111 EHH (1
Shares lingz anl the enl of the year 10,000 i 101,IHH) 10
(i) 00 %% lative optionally ¢ bl { il et e shares (COCRPS)
Particulars Asat 31 March 2020 As i 31 Marcch 2009

Number of shares Amuunt Number of shares Amgunt
Sharcs at the beginmg of the vear 29000000 2901 - =
Shares issued during the peniod 1.990,000 19.90 24,0 DK 200,00
Shares fing i the end of the year 30,990,000 309,90 29, IHHE TN 290,00

i) Rights, preferences aml restrictions attsched to equity shares aml preference shares:

(i} Equity shares

Tl Company has only e elass of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/ cach. Each cquity share holder is entitled to one vote per cquity share held.In the cvent of liquidation
of the company, he holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all prefercatiol amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity: shares held by the sharcholders.

(i} 0001 % cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares {COCRPS)

COCRES were issucd ot par 1o ils parent company, Krishaa Institute of Medical Sciences Limited. COCRPS carry & cumulative dividend rate of 101% p.a. COCRPS have a
preferential right of dividend over equily sharcholders. Following ore the terms and conditions:

1 The COCRES can be converted into 30,990,000 cquity shares of Rs 114= coch a1 par (e cach COCRPS shall be converted into | (one) Equity Sharc of the Compuny at any time
alier the il vear but before 10k vear from the date of issuance and allotment of the COCRPS at the sole option of the Compary supported by the resolution passed by all the
Dircetors unanimously in o Board Mecting and approval by all the sharcholders (Eguity ) in o General Meoling,

i The COCRPS will be redeemable (in multiple tranches or single tranche) al the option of the Company by way of (i) conversion of CORCPS afler Tth year but before 1tk vear
Trom the dute of issunnce and allotment of the COURPS based on the valustion certificate obtained from the Chiartered Accountant or Merchant Banker as the case may be or (i)
pavinent after 2nd vear but before the cnd of 10 vear from the date of issuance. The COCRPS will only be redeemed at par 1e. al which such COCRPS are wssued (i Rs. 10 per
COCRPS aggregating o Rs. 309.900,000), and no other premium will be pavable ot the time of THowever. Iated dividend will be paid before redamption, @t the
option of the company,

iii) Particulars of shavchalders holding more than 5% shares

{i} Equity shares

MNume of sharcholder

As at 31 March 20240 As at 31 March 2009
Number of shares % of Holding — Number of shaves % of Holding

Knshna Institute of Meodical Sciences Limited EREH R R0 R
SV, Kighore Reddy 7065 7.65% 765 7.65%
Yelakala Surciwdra Reddy Gk 6.68% 2] 6.68%

As ut 31 Mureh 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Mumber of shares % of Holding  Number of shares % of Holding
30,5990, 0011 [[HTREIE 29,1 0 T

Nume of sharchalder

Knshna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

i) Shares of the Company held by holding company

(i) Equity shares

Nume of sharchalder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 Murch 2019
Number of shares Amount__ Number of shares Amaunt

Krishua [nstitute of Medical Sciences Limited* £.0040 LI £.00H [N

i) 0001 % cumulative optinnally convertible redeemable preference shares (COCRPS)

Name of sharchalder As at 31 March 2020 Asoat 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amaunt_ Number of shares Amannt

Krishna [nstiute of Medical Sciences Limited* J00.U0, 0 309 29,000,000 29000

*With effect from 05 September 2018, the Company became a subsidiary of Krishna Instituie of Medical Sciences Liniited.

2.9 () Other equity As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

{A) Retained carnings

Balance as per last finascinl statements (3337) =
Addd: loss Tor the vear (31.04) {33.37)
Closing balance (A) (64.41) (33.37)

(B} Other comprehensive income
Balance as per last financial statements iz =
Add: R

. wain on cmploy ce defined benefit plans 1138 -
Clasing halance {B) 1138 -
{C) Capital Contribution
Opening balance 1795 .
Add: Inercase during the vear 0175 17.95
Closing halanee () 18,71 1795
Tutal nther cquity (A+B+C) (45.33) (15.42)

Nature wd purpose of reserves:
(i) Retained carnings
Retained camings are the profiisfosses (net of appropriations) of the company carned 1l daie, including itcms of other comprehensive income,

(i) Capital contribution
Finaneial guarantce contracts are recognised as a finaneial ability ot the time of issue of guarantee. The liabilty is measured at fair value and subscquently at the higher of the
amount determined in pccordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount imitially recognised less comulative amortisation. where approprime

Where guaranice in relation 1o loans or oflicr payables of subsidiany is provided for no compensation by the sharcholder, fair values of such guntantees are pecounted as cﬂ?lt.!! ‘;‘"
contebution in the books of the Compans.,
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2,10 Long-term borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at 31 Mareh 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Non-current Current* Non-current Current®

Secured
Term loans from bank

- HDFC Bank Limited (refer note (a) below) 49344 300 495.14 229
Total loans from bank (A) 493.44 300 495.14 229
Unsecured
Loan from related party (refer note (h) below) 60.00 - ' - -
Total unsecured loans (B) 60.00 - - -
Taotal (A+B) 553.44 31.00 495.14 .29
Notes:

*Refer current maturities of long term debis under note 2,14 (b) Other financial liabilities

a) Term loan from banks represents loans obtained from HDFC Bank Limited. The loans are repayable in Equated Monthly Instalments covering Principle
and Interest for term loans. These loans are for a term of 12 years, with a structured EMI payments for the first 1.5 years and uniform EMI payables for the
balance 10.5 years and carries a interest rate of 9.75% p.a floating rate linked to bank's 1 year MCLR for term loans.

The loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assets of the Company and equitable mortgage on the
property owned by the Company situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348 NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy
Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by the holding Company and personal guaraniee given by the
directors- Mr. 8.V Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy,

b) Unsecured loan from related parties as at 31 March, 2020 represented loans obtained from the holding company and carrying interest rate of’ 12% per
annum. refer note 2.25 for related parties balances.
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Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
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As at As at
31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
.11 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.24) 1.15 0.67
Total 1.15 0.67
2.12  Short-term borrowings
Secured
Working capital loans from banks (refer note 1) 11.35 47.32
Unsecured
- from related parties (refer note i) - 37.00
11.35 84,32

(1}. Secured working capital loan represents overdraft facility from HDFC Bank Limited. The facility carries interest rate of 9.95% per annum, linked to
I year MCLR. The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assets of the Company and equitable
mortgage on the property owned by the Company situated at Sy no. 155, D.No.1-1348 NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near
Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institule of Medical
Sciences Limited ("the holding company") and personal guarantee given by the directors:- Mr. 8.V Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy.

(i1). Unsecured loan from related parties as at 31 March 2020 represented loans obtained from holding company and carrying interest rate of 12% per
annum. refer note 2.25 for related parties balances,

2,13 Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 2.28) - -
- total u‘u!shmdmg dues of creditors other than micro and small 107.29 66.53
enterprises
107.29 66.53
The above includes payable to related parties. For details refer note 2.25,
Trade paybles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.
2,14 Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
(a)  Non-current
Capital creditors 4.27 3.26
4.27 3.26
(b)  Current
Current maturity of long term debts (refer note 2.10) 31.00 2,29
Capital creditors 14 .82 16.13
Employee benefits payable 11.81 6.61
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.83 5.62
61.40 30.65
The Company’s exposure to inlerest rale, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.30.
2.15 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 3.12 0.08
Total 3.12 0.08
2.16  Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 3.85 3.90
Contract liabilities 1.09 0.72
Total 4.95 4.62
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended 31 For the period ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
2.17 Revenue from operations (refer note 2.32)
Income from hospital services 29927 200646
Income from sale of pharmacy items 28361 20.69
582.88 227.15
2.18  Other income

Income on fixed deposits 0.05 -

Sub lease income 1.44 .16
Income from sale of food and beverages - .86
Miscellaneous Income 0.73 0.19

Total 2.22 2.21




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended 31 For the period ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
.19 Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed
Opening stock 16.34 6.06
Add: Purchases during the period 153.97 64.60
Less: Closing stock (12.83) (16.34)
157.49 54,32
2.20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 112.91 40,17
Caontribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2,24) " 7.89 3.25
Staft welfare expenses 1.31 0.94
122,11 44.36
2.21 Finance costs
Interest from bank
- Term loan 48.36 2377
- Others 3.75 0,59
Interest on other loans 9.38 2.69
Guaraniee commission 1.53 -
Others 0.21 2.51
63.23 29.56
2.32 Other expenses
Consultancy charges 157.79 64.29
Hospital maintenance 12,17 3.87
Power and fuel 18.07 8.07
Rent {refer note 2.34) 1.46 0.11
Rates and taxes 0,99 3.58
Repairs and maintenance
- Medical equipment 6,48 3.23
- Hospital building and others 11.18 548
Advertisement expense 10.49 6.70
Traveling and conveyance 3.93 2.83
Communication expenses 1.03 0.40
Printing and stationery 39 7.12
Legal and professional charges 210 4.47
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 0,60 0,60
Catering and patient welfare expenses 11.96 5.96
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 222 491
Insurance 0.55 0.06
Subseriptions and membership fees 0.81 0,60
Bank charges 1.03 0.44
Miscellaneous expenses 8.82 4.19
255.57 126.93

Payment to auditor (excluding applicable taxes)

Particular: For the year ended 31 For the period ended 31
o March 2020 March 2019
Statutory audit fee 0.60 0.60
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2,23 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Commitments

" As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining lo be executed on capital 0.36 1.04

account and not provided for (net of advances)

(b).On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining
which components of their employee's compensation are subject to statwtory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution
obligations, for Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are inlerpretative issues relating to the restrospective applicability of
the judgement. However, from the current year, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme count’s judgement. The Company
will evaluate the same and update ils position for carlier years, if'any on receiving further clarity on the subject.
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Naotes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.24 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company aperate post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuily, The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered al least five
years of continuous services, (o receive one-hall month's salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The Company's obligation in
respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected
unit eredit method, The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act,1972 as applicable as al the balance sheet date.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in
the Company's financial statements as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars Asah As il
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligations liability .15 0.67
Plan assets = =
Net defined benefit liability 1.15 0.67
Total employee benefit liability LIS 0.67
Mon-current 1.15 0.67
Current - -

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets)liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (assets) liability and its components.

i} Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars UsE Pyt
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 0.67 -
Current service cost 0.95 0.67
Interest cost 0.05 -
Actuarial (gains)losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in demographic assumptions (0.72) -
= Changesin fi al ptions 12 -
- due to other reason .08 -
Defined benefit obligation as at balance sheet date 1.15 0.67
ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
Particulars angt Asut
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Plan assets at beginning of the year = -
Contributions paid into the plan - J
Benefits pmd # =
Return on plan assets - -
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive mcome (actuarial gain/loss) - -
Plan assets at end of the year = =
Net defined benefit liability .15 .67
C i) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
Pasticalars For the year ended  For the year ended
: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 0.95 0.67
Interest cost 0.05 -
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits' 1.00 0.67

N
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Nuotes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

D Plan assets
Plan assets comprises of the following:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Fund 1 ped by Insurer

E  Defined benefit obligation
1) Actuarial assumptions

The lollowing are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Principal actuarial assumptions As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Discount rate 5.85% 7.50%

Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1st following year
Year 2 to 5 years
Year 6109 years
More than 10 years

0.63
0.57
0.60

0.13
0.34
1.52

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of

the abligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the

estimated term of the obligations

ii) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the

amounts shown below:

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019
Increase Increase Decrease

Discount rate { 1% movement) (1.07) ((L60) 0.76
Future salary increase (1% movement) 1.24 0.76 (0.60)
F Amount of current year and previous four years are as follows

: As at As at
Partonliry 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.15 0.67
Fair value of plan assets # -
{Surplus)/ deficit in the plan 1.15 .67

G Defined contribution plan

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards
1} Provident fund
i) Employee state insurance

4.18
271

1.23
1.35
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.25 Related party disclosures
(a) Parties where control exists or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the current year or
previous year

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
Key management personnel (KMP) S.V. Kishore Reddy, Managing Director
Chandra Kumar B, Company Secretary
P Sudhakar, Chief Financial officer (Appomted w.e.f. 01 July 2019)
Directors Dr. B Abhinay
Yelakala Surendra Reddy
Giri Thalluru
Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa
Rajeswara Rao Gandu
Enterprises under control or joint control of Saveera Educational Society
KMP and other relative Saveera Hospital Private Limited
Surajram Hotels
Yelakala Industries Private Limited
Relative of KMP Yelakala Precthi Reddy
Holding Company Krishna Institute of Medical Sci Limited |
(b)  Transactions with related parties
particulars For the year ended For the year ended|
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i Managerial remuneration paid to key managerial personnel
5.V. Kishore Reddy 3 321 1.53
Yelakala Surendra Reddy 219 0.87
Chandra Kumar B 0.24 -
P Sudhakar 0.75 -
il.  Allotment of equity shares**®
5.V. Kishore Reddy - 0.05
Yelakala Surendra Reddy - 0.05
iii.  Advances given
Saveera Educational Society 3.90 1.71
iv.  Medical camp and marketing expenses
Yelakala Industries Private Limited 0.95 0.19
Surajram Hotels 1.33 -
v.  Payment of purchase consideration
Saveera Hospital Private Limited - 197.27
vi.  Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
Saveera Hospital Private Limited - 2.96
vii.  Amount collected on behalf of the Company and transferred to
the Company (including tax deducted at source)
Saveera Hospital Private Limited 123.45 8423
viii. Director Sitting Fees
Rajeswara Rao Gandu 0.03 -
Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa 0.03 -
ix.  Purchase of frechold land (including stamp duty and registration fee)
Mr.S.V Kishore Reddy and Mrs. Yelakala Preethi Reddy - 9.86
X, Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Loan received 77.00 3700
Loan repaid 54.00 -
Issue of preference shares 19.90 290.00
Pharmacy items purchased and other services .56 -
Test & Investigations Fees 1.30 -
Pharmacy items sales 0.03 -
Corporate guarantee received 30.00 -
IFair value of corporate gurantee received 0.69 -
Commission income on corporate puarantees 1.53 -
Interest on unsecured loan 9.38 2.69




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
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2.25 Related party disclosures (continued)
(¢)  The balances receivable from and payable to related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

i Managerial remuneration payable
SV, Kishore Reddy

Yelakala Surendra Reddy

B Chandra Kumar

P Sudhakar

il Receivable/(payable) balance (net)
Saveera Hospital Private Limited
Saveera Educational Society
Surajram Hotels

iii.  Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Trade Receivables
Trade payables
Corporate guarantee received*
Unsecured Loan
Prepaid guaraniee eommission

0.22
019
0.02
0.06

6,57
(0,109

0.03
(1.16)

58000
(60.00)

16.46

0.26
0.15

0.59
2.68

15.46

550.00
(37.00)

(d)  For certain loan availed by the Company, few directors of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2.10 and 2.12 for details on the same.

* Considering the financial guarantee is provided for no compensation, fair value of financial guarantee amounting to Rs. 1871 is recognized as capital

contribution in the books of the Company.

**+ During the previous period, pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered on 05 September 2018, S.V. Kishore Reddy and Yelekala Surendra Reddy
have transferred 4,134 and 3,866 equity shares of Rs. 10 each respectively to Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited.

Terms and Conditions

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail i arm’s

unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash,
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2.26 Earnings per share(EPS)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Earnings
Net loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders (31.04) (33.37)
Less: Dividend payable to preference shareholders®* (0.00) (0.00)
Loss considered for EPS calculation (31.04) (33.37)
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 -
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - 10,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 10,000 6,219
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -Basic 10,000 6,219
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -diluted 10,000 6,219
Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value Rs. 10 each-Basic (Rs.) (3,104.32) (5,364.90)
Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value Rs. 10 each-Diluted (Rs.)* (3,104.32) (5,364.90)

* Potential equity shares of the Company are anti-dilutive in nature, hence, diluted earnings per share is considered as equal to basic carnings per share.

**ihe amount 15 below rounding off norms adopted by the company.,

Anantapur
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Segment information
The Company 1s engaged in the business of rendering medical and healtheare services.

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment™ (“Ind AS 1087) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
sepments and related disclosures about products and services, peographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “Management approach™ as defined
Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief’ Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) i.e. the Board of Directors, The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole
operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind A5 108, other
than those already provided in the financial statements.

Further the business operation of the Company are concentrated in India, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in one geographical
sepgment.

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respeet of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the financial
stalements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be
payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (The MSMED Act) is not expeeted to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.

As at As at

-
Particulars 31 March 2020] 31 March 2019

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal - -
- Interest = e
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act - -
The amount of payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year; &

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED act.
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2.29 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Managemen! monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the ‘adjusted net debt’ to "adjusted equity’ ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity

exlending capital contribution.
The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as follows:

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Total Borrowings 59579 581.75
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 111 4.52
Adjusted net debt 594.68 577.23
Total equity 245.96 256.72
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 2.42 2.25
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2.30 Financial instruments @ Fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other linancial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial
labilities approximate their carrying amounts as fair value,

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control enviromment
in which all the employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company's Board of Direclors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight role by the
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Board of Directors.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contraet, leading to financial loss. The credit
risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and fnancial
institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum eredit risk exposure,

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade
receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respeet of trade and other receivables based on the past
and the recent collection trend. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 104.48 as on 31
Mareh 2020 (31 March 2019; Rs, 74.85). The movement in allowance for credit loss in respeet of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

As at As at
Allowance for credit losses 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 491 -
Credit loss added / (reversed) 222 4,91
Closing balance 713 4.91

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies,

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term
and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of
financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents, The Company also has
adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective
manner

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1-5years  More than 5 years Total
Non current borrowings* 55344 - 283.62 269.81 553.44
Short term borrowings 11.35 11.35 - - 11.35
Trade payables 107.29 107.29 - - 107.29
Other financial liabilities 65.73 61.46 4.27 - 65,73
Total T = T37.81 180,10 287.89 269.81 737.81

*excluding current maturities
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2019:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1-5years  More than 5 years Total
Non current borrowings® 495.14 - 170.38 324.76 495,14
Short term borrowings 84,32 84.32 - - 84.32
Trade payables 66.53 66.53 - - 66.53
Other financial liabilities xR .65 326 - 3391
Total 679.90 181.50 173.64 324.76 679,90

*excluding current maturities
The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company to repay the loan carlier than
indicated in the above table,
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2.30 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(iv) Market risk

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Variable rate borrowings including current maturities and short term borrowings 535.78 544.75
Total borrowings 535.78 544.75
(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis

As at As at

2, 3 -
Raiiin 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sensitivity

1% increase in MCLR
| % decrease in MCLR

(5.36)
5.36

(5.45)
545

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

{v) Currency risk
The Company 1s not exposed to currency risk.
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2.31 Income-tax

a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year
ended 31
March 2020

For the year
ended 31
March 2019

Current tax
Deferred tax attributable to temporary dilferences
Tax expenses for the year

(27.95)
{27.95)

(12.86)
(12.86)

b. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

For the period ended 31 March 2020

FFor the period ended 31 March 2019

Tax Tax
Before tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax (expense)/ Net of tax
henefit henefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans 0.52 {0.15) 038 - - -
¢. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
For the year  For the year|
ended 31 ended 31
March 2020 March 2019
Profit before tax . (58.99) (46.23)
Enacted tax rates 27.82% 27.82%
Tax expense at enacted rates (16.41) (12.86)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Reversal of deferred tax accounted on business combination (11.54) -
(27.95) (12.86)
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i} Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful receivables 1.98 1.37
Provision for employee benefits 119 0.21
Business loss 227 22,49
Others - 2.40
Total deferred tax asset 5.44 26,47
Deferred tax liability
Excess of depreciation on the fixed assets under income tax, 1961 over dey 1on under Ce Act 5.44 54,27
Others
Total deferred tax liability 5.44 54,27
Deferred tax liability/asset (net) - (27.80)]

(i) Movement in temporary differences

Particulars Balance as  Recognised in Recognised in Balance as at | Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in Balance as at

at 1 April  profit or loss ocl 31 March | 1 April 20019 profit or loss ocl 31 March
2018 2019 2020

Provision for doubtful receivables - 1.37 - 1.37 1.37 0.62 - 1.98

Provision for gratuity - 0.21 - 0.21 0.21 1.12 {0.15) 119

Business loss - 22.49 - 22.49 22.49 (20.22) - 227

Orthers ilems - assels - 2.40 - 240 2.40 (2.40) - -

Expenses of depreciation on the fixed assets under - (54.27) - (54.27) (54.27) 4883 - (5.44)

income tax, 1961 over depreciation under Companics

Act.

Total - (27.80) - (27.80) (27.80) 27.95 (0.15) -
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2.32 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income from hospital services 29927 206,46
Revenue from sale of pharmacy 283.01 20.69
Total revenue from operations 582.88 227.15

India 582.88 227.15
Outside lndia ,

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 299.27 206,46
Goods transferred at a point of time 28361 20.69
Total revenue from contracts with customers 581.88 227.15

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 65927 262 80
Less: Discounts and disallowances (70.42) (28.82)
Less: Others (5.97) (6.83)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 582.88 227.15

The Company collects GST on behall of the Government, Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations,

Contract balances

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables 97.34 69,94
Contract assels 1.21 358
Contract liabilities 1.09 0.72

Contract liability: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. 0,72 from advance receivied from
patients outstanding as on 31 March 2019, During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has recognised revenue of Rs. Nil from
advance receivied from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2018,

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the company has transferred Rs. 3.58 of contract assets as at 31 March 2019 to
trade receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company has transterred Rs, Nil
of contract assets as at 31 March 2018 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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1.33 Business Combination

The Company through Business 1ransfer agreement, purchased the hospital and healheare division of Saveera Hospita) Private Lisnited under shumyp sale on 23
Seplember 2018 for a consideration of Rs.197.27 on a going concerh basis with effeet from 61 Ociober 2018, Accordingly, an amount of Ra.258.20 being the
excess of purchase consideration over el value of assets acquired{based ca a valuagion report) has been recognised as Goodwill on acquisitdon. The details of

purchase price allocation is as follows:

Particulnrs

31 March 2019

Total assets(Current and noan eurren t)

Propery, plant and equipment 439,00
huangible assets 4276
Tarde Receivables 6l.52
luveniories 6,07
Financial assels 173
Non Currenl 1ax assels 2143
G250
Total Liabilities(Current amd nen current)
Borrowings §20.53
Delerred lax liabilities 40 67
Financials Linbilities 109.21
Other liabililies 10.01
689.44
Net Assets 160.92)
Less: Purchase congideration (I
|Geodwill on Acquisition (258.20

2.34 Lense

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has certain leases albuildings with lease terms of 12 months or less or with low value. The Company applies the “shori-term loase * and "lease of low-

vale assels’ recognition exemplions for these leases,

‘The Company has residential premises wider cancellable eperaling leases, The Company intends (o renew such lease in the novinal course of business. Total remtal
expenses wnder cancellable operating lease amounted 1o Rs. 1.46 (3] March 2019 Rs. 0.11}. The same are grouped under other expenses in fhe stalement of profit

angd Joss,

2,35 Giobal Henbth Pandemic

The oulbreak of COVID-19 in many coumtries has brought about distuptions Lo businesses around the would and unceriainty 1o the global cconomy. The Compnty
is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of it's business, inchuding how i will impact its employees, vendors and business pariners. The
Company based on the information available to date, both internal and external, considered the uncerlainiy relating o the COVID-19 pandesic i assessing 15
impact. Based on the curren eslimates, the Company expects W fully recover the carrying amount of assels, and docs nat foreses any malerial adverse impacl on
itz operations. Ax the oulbreak comtinues to evolve, the Company will continue Lo closely monidor ay malerin! changes 1o future ceonomic condition.

2,36 There were no signilicant adljusting evenls ihat ocourred subsequent 1@ the reporling peviol.

As pes our ceport atiached ofeven date

For and on behall of the Board of Dircelovs of
Kaveern Institute of Medica Seiences Private Limited
CIN: USRS 100APZOISPTCI0%I04
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Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in
the future,

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer
Note 2.31 —Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. Refer Note 2.24 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial
assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used
for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
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Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has issued 0.001% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
(“COCRPS”™) to Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“KIMS” or “Holding Company™).
As per the terms of the COCRPS, the Company needs to convert at any time after 15" year but
before 19" year from the date of issuance or redeem at the 20" year from the date of issuance, which
is in the control of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured the
aforesaid instruments as equity, carried at cost.

1] Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current
classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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2) Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit
Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major
agsumptions used in the valuations.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions
made in measuring fair values is included in Note 2.30 — financial instruments.

1.3 Significant accounting policies
A. Business Combination and goodwill.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held,
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment
still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.
However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCL.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.
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A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

B. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital
services and sale of pharmacy items.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 1 15 - Revenue from Contract with
customers which establishes a comprehensive framework for revenue recognition. Revenue is
recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. When there is uncertainty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital
services. The performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery,
medical/clinical professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of
pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is recognised when the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect
to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date, revenue is
recognised to the extent of services rendered. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price,
which is the fixed consideration adjusted for discounts, amounts payable to customer, principal
versus agent considerations, any other rights and obligations as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and deposited back to the
respective statutory authorities.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy (other than hospital services), where the performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at
the balance sheet date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
inancial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss
except to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except.

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts
and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle
explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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D. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing
costs, if the recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for
its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful
life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon
sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding
as of each reporting date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and
equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as
estimated by the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The
Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and
equipment which are in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
hange in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is
derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability
of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures

required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category of Assels Useful life (In years)
Software 6
Brand 5
Non-compete fee 5

F. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

G. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies
of Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

H. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost
or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net
realisable is made on an item by item basis.




